THE OLDE MEETING HOUSE
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Driving north past the center to town, Danville’s Main Street narrows slightly and begins its meandering path through North Danville toward the Fremont town line.  A leisurely drive north on Main Street will allow intermittent views into Danville’s history.  One can see various older homes, original stone walls, the old Town Pound dating back to 1802 on the left, and the Little Red Schoolhouse dating back to 1834 on the right.  The town’s historical showpiece, however, is found in North Danville, directly across Main Street from old Tuckertown Road. 

The Olde Meeting House, believed to be the oldest original construction meeting house in New Hampshire, still stands, albeit precariously, against the ravages of time and man.

The travel distance to public worship in Kingstowne in the mid eighteenth century created a desire by a certain group of local settlers for a more convenient location to worship.  Construction of the Olde Meeting House is believed to have taken three years, and was completed in 1755.  That group of settlers then petitioned the King for a new township to be separated from what was then known as Kingstowne.  The petition was granted, and the town’s charter dated February 22, 1760, established the Township of Hawke, named after a famous British admiral.  Seventy years later, after the fame of the British admiral had diminished, the name of our town was changed to Danville. 

The exterior of the Olde Meeting House is simply constructed with little ornamentation.  The interior, however, is where the detailed construction techniques were applied.  The quality of craftsmanship is obvious in hand-hewn timbers, fluted pilasters, paneled walls, and the pulpit which is the oldest remaining example of a high pulpit in New Hampshire.  It is important to note that the exterior, the pulpit, and the interior of the Meeting House are all original construction.  The pews on the main floor, however, were reconstructed from the original pews which were removed and stored in the gallery in the mid-nineteenth century by a group of residents who wanted to use the Meeting House for dances.  The current pews on the main floor were reconstructed in 1936 through a donation from Lester A. Colby.

The Olde Meeting House held its first Town Meeting on March 10, 1760.  The last Town Meeting was held there in 1886.  Church services were held therein from 1760 through 1832.

In 1912 the Olde Meeting House Association was created to help maintain and care for the structure and its grounds.  Their efforts are evident as the Association continues today to maintain the showpiece in this part of historic Danville.

Danville’s pride in the Olde Meeting House was evident in 1988 when the residents voted to include a drawing of it in the new Town Seal.

We encourage residents from all towns in the area to visit and enjoy our remarkable historic structure, open to the public on Memorial Day and for a non-denominational service on Old Home Day, the fourth Sunday in August each year.  This year services will be held at 3 p.m. on August 23rd.  All are welcome.  

